
Budget Committee Minutes 1 2/26/2007 

Municipal Budget Committee 
 

Public Hearing Minutes 
 

February 13, 2007, 6:30 P.M.  
 

Corner Meeting House 
 
 

Chairman Ron Mitchell called the meeting to order at 6:33 p.m.  Also 
present were committee members Ken Ellis, Albert Akerstrom, Linda Frawley, 
Mark Roberts, David Morse, Cherie Willoughby and Selectmen’s Representative 
Ronald Cormier. Others in attendance were Town Administrator K. Jeanne 
Beaudin, Receptionist Sharill Conley, Town Planner Candace Daigle, Police 
Chief Vincent Baiocchetti, Public Works Director Bob Bennett, Parks and 
Recreation Director Janet Breton, General Assistance Director Donna Cilley, and 
Daily Sun Reporter Ray Carbone. 
 

Albert Akerstrom moved to accept the minutes of February 6, 2007 as 
written, Mark Roberts seconded.  

 
Linda Frawley asked that the following changes be made on page 2, 

paragraph 5 under Pleasant Valley Project to “whether this was the first 
Community Development Block Grant application since the Mill.” And on page 3, 
paragraph 3 under BRATT to “if there is any limit for the 20% match of staff in-
kind or time and asked how contributions were acknowledged for tax purposes.” 
And on page 5, paragraph 7 under Police Station project be changed to 
“mentioned that Gilford’s police station project proposal over the last 2 years was 
estimated at $2.1 million for 15,000 square feet. Deleting last sentence of that 
paragraph. 

 
With no further discussion Chairman Mitchell called for a vote. The vote 

was in favor as amended, the motion passed. 
 
Chairman Mitchell reviewed the MS-7, for those present. 
 
Ray Carbone inquired why insurance had gone up so much, and if the 

Town was issuing insurance to the call fire fighters. Town Administrator Jeanne 
Beaudin stated there is no insurance benefits for call fire fighters. She explained 
that the increase in health insurance was 5.5% this year; that there was no 
change in dental benefits; and that retirement rates also saw a significant 
increase. 

 
Ray Carbone inquired why there were no changes in the solid waste clean 

up since there is now recycling through Bestway Disposal and would there be 
any difference in the cost because of the new recycling program. Town 



Budget Committee Minutes 2 2/26/2007 

Administrator Beaudin explained that despite the apparent success of the new 
recycling facility, any financial benefit would not be seen until next year’s budget 
is compiled. Chairman Mitchell also stated that  $10,000 is for the purchase of 
recycling bins for the resident’s of Belmont to encourage the new recycling 
process. 

 
Resident, Donna Cilley, inquired why the estimated amounts on “Shared 

Revenues” had gone down and why the “Meals & Rooms Tax” had not changed 
from previous year. Town Administrator Beaudin explained that the Department 
of Revenue Administration does not give the final numbers until September, 
which would then be reflected on MS4 Revised Revenues, which are used to 
calculate the tax rate. 

 
With no further discussion on the actual budget, Chairman Mitchell then 

reviewed the Special Warrant Articles explaining what the Budget Committee 
recommended compared to the Board of Selectmen’s recommendations.  

 
With no further discussion on the Special Warrant Articles, Chairman 

Mitchell reviewed the budget for Sunray Shores Water District for those present. 
 
David Morse asked Town Administrator Beaudin what the estimated tax 

impact of the proposed budget and warrant articles would have under the Town’s 
current estimated land value. Town Administrator Beaudin stated current tax 
rates would be $9.95 per $1,000 of home value. David Morse noted it to be a 
10% increase. Town Administrator explained that this did not include estimated 
revenues coming into the Town.  

 
Ray Carbone inquired if subtotal 1 on page 8 would be the operating 

budget. Town Administrator stated it would.  
 
Chairman Mitchell closed the Public Hearing at 7:08 p.m.  
 
Ken Ellis moved to accept the budget as recommended by the Budget 

Committee, Linda Frawley seconded. Chairman Mitchell called for a vote. The 
vote was unanimous in favor. The motion passed.  

 
Cherie Willoughby wanted it noted the reason she did not re-run for the 

Budget Committee was because it stated on her document from the Town an end 
term of 2008. She felt it was unfair to have to be reappointed when the document 
states she is on Budget Committee until 2008. Chairman Mitchell mentioned, 
unfortunately, it was a typographical error and according to the RSA she could 
only be reappointed until the next elections in the upcoming year. He apologized 
that it wasn’t made clearer to her. 

 
Ray Carbone inquired of Chairman Mitchell how many openings were 

available for the budget committee. Chairman Mitchell explained that there are 4 



Budget Committee Minutes 3 2/26/2007 

3-year positions, and additionally there are two 1-year positions, which will be 
filled by appointment following the elections on March 13th. 

 
 At this time the quorum of budget committee members agreed to sign the 

MS-7 reports as well as the MS-37 reports for the Sunray Shores water district. 
 
Chairman Mitchell encouraged all to be at the Public Hearing for Bond 

Issues by the Board of Selectman next Tuesday, February 20, 2007. The Bond 
Hearing will be on the Police Station project, Pleasant Valley project, Rte 3 water 
line, and the well project. 

 
Chairman Mitchell thanked the committee for all their work and reminded 

everyone present that Town Elections will be held on Tuesday, March 13th and 
Town Meeting will be held on Saturday, March 17th.  

 
Ken Ellis moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:18 p.m. Albert Akerstrom   

seconded; the motion passed unanimously. 
 
Approved: 
 
             
Chairman Ronald Mitchell     Gary Flack 
 
             
Ronald Cormier, Selectman    Richard Fournier 
 
             
Kenneth Knowlton      Ken Ellis 
 
             
Norma Patten      Albert Akerstrom 
 
             
Cherie Willoughby       Linda Frawley 
 
             
David Morse       Mark Roberts 
 
         
Submitted by: Sharill Conley 
 
Date:     
 
 



Budget Committee Minutes 1 2/26/2007 

Municipal Budget Committee 
 

Public Hearing Minutes 
 

February 13, 2007, 6:30 P.M.  
 

Corner Meeting House 
 
 

Chairman Ron Mitchell called the meeting to order at 6:33 p.m.  Also 
present were committee members Ken Ellis, Albert Akerstrom, Linda Frawley, 
Mark Roberts, David Morse, Cherie Willoughby and Selectmen’s Representative 
Ronald Cormier. Others in attendance were Town Administrator K. Jeanne 
Beaudin, Receptionist Sharill Conley, Town Planner Candace Daigle, Police 
Chief Vincent Baiocchetti, Public Works Director Bob Bennett, Parks and 
Recreation Director Janet Breton, General Assistance Director Donna Cilley, and 
Daily Sun Reporter Ray Carbone. 
 

Albert Akerstrom moved to accept the minutes of February 6, 2007 as 
written, Mark Roberts seconded.  

 
Linda Frawley asked that the following changes be made on page 2, 

paragraph 5 under Pleasant Valley Project to “whether this was the first 
Community Development Block Grant application since the Mill.” And on page 3, 
paragraph 3 under BRATT to “if there is any limit for the 20% match of staff in-
kind or time and asked how contributions were acknowledged for tax purposes.” 
And on page 5, paragraph 7 under Police Station project be changed to 
“mentioned that Gilford’s police station project proposal over the last 2 years was 
estimated at $2.1 million for 15,000 square feet. Deleting last sentence of that 
paragraph. 

 
With no further discussion Chairman Mitchell called for a vote. The vote 

was in favor as amended, the motion passed. 
 
Chairman Mitchell reviewed the MS-7, for those present. 
 
Ray Carbone inquired why insurance had gone up so much, and if the 

Town was issuing insurance to the call fire fighters. Town Administrator Jeanne 
Beaudin stated there is no insurance benefits for call fire fighters. She explained 
that the increase in health insurance was 5.5% this year; that there was no 
change in dental benefits; and that retirement rates also saw a significant 
increase. 

 
Ray Carbone inquired why there were no changes in the solid waste clean 

up since there is now recycling through Bestway Disposal and would there be 
any difference in the cost because of the new recycling program. Town 



Budget Committee Minutes 2 2/26/2007 

Administrator Beaudin explained that despite the apparent success of the new 
recycling facility, any financial benefit would not be seen until next year’s budget 
is compiled. Chairman Mitchell also stated that  $10,000 is for the purchase of 
recycling bins for the resident’s of Belmont to encourage the new recycling 
process. 

 
Resident, Donna Cilley, inquired why the estimated amounts on “Shared 

Revenues” had gone down and why the “Meals & Rooms Tax” had not changed 
from previous year. Town Administrator Beaudin explained that the Department 
of Revenue Administration does not give the final numbers until September, 
which would then be reflected on MS4 Revised Revenues, which are used to 
calculate the tax rate. 

 
With no further discussion on the actual budget, Chairman Mitchell then 

reviewed the Special Warrant Articles explaining what the Budget Committee 
recommended compared to the Board of Selectmen’s recommendations.  

 
With no further discussion on the Special Warrant Articles, Chairman 

Mitchell reviewed the budget for Sunray Shores Water District for those present. 
 
David Morse asked Town Administrator Beaudin what the estimated tax 

impact of the proposed budget and warrant articles would have under the Town’s 
current estimated land value. Town Administrator Beaudin stated current tax 
rates would be $9.95 per $1,000 of home value. David Morse noted it to be a 
10% increase. Town Administrator explained that this did not include estimated 
revenues coming into the Town.  

 
Ray Carbone inquired if subtotal 1 on page 8 would be the operating 

budget. Town Administrator stated it would.  
 
Chairman Mitchell closed the Public Hearing at 7:08 p.m.  
 
Ken Ellis moved to accept the budget as recommended by the Budget 

Committee, Linda Frawley seconded. Chairman Mitchell called for a vote. The 
vote was unanimous in favor. The motion passed.  

 
Cherie Willoughby wanted it noted the reason she did not re-run for the 

Budget Committee was because it stated on her document from the Town an end 
term of 2008. She felt it was unfair to have to be reappointed when the document 
states she is on Budget Committee until 2008. Chairman Mitchell mentioned, 
unfortunately, it was a typographical error and according to the RSA she could 
only be reappointed until the next elections in the upcoming year. He apologized 
that it wasn’t made clearer to her. 

 
Ray Carbone inquired of Chairman Mitchell how many openings were 

available for the budget committee. Chairman Mitchell explained that there are 4 



Budget Committee Minutes 3 2/26/2007 

3-year positions, and additionally there are two 1-year positions, which will be 
filled by appointment following the elections on March 13th. 

 
 At this time the quorum of budget committee members agreed to sign the 

MS-7 reports as well as the MS-37 reports for the Sunray Shores water district. 
 
Chairman Mitchell encouraged all to be at the Public Hearing for Bond 

Issues by the Board of Selectman next Tuesday, February 20, 2007. The Bond 
Hearing will be on the Police Station project, Pleasant Valley project, Rte 3 water 
line, and the well project. 

 
Chairman Mitchell thanked the committee for all their work and reminded 

everyone present that Town Elections will be held on Tuesday, March 13th and 
Town Meeting will be held on Saturday, March 17th.  

 
Ken Ellis moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:18 p.m. Albert Akerstrom   

seconded; the motion passed unanimously. 
 
Approved: 
 
             
Chairman Ronald Mitchell     Gary Flack 
 
             
Ronald Cormier, Selectman    Richard Fournier 
 
             
Kenneth Knowlton      Ken Ellis 
 
             
Norma Patten      Albert Akerstrom 
 
             
Cherie Willoughby       Linda Frawley 
 
             
David Morse       Mark Roberts 
 
         
Submitted by: Sharill Conley 
 
Date:     
 
 



Budget Committee Minutes 1 2/26/2007 

Municipal Budget Committee 
 

Public Hearing Minutes 
 

February 13, 2007, 6:30 P.M.  
 

Corner Meeting House 
 
 

Chairman Ron Mitchell called the meeting to order at 6:33 p.m.  Also 
present were committee members Ken Ellis, Albert Akerstrom, Linda Frawley, 
Mark Roberts, David Morse, Cherie Willoughby and Selectmen’s Representative 
Ronald Cormier. Others in attendance were Town Administrator K. Jeanne 
Beaudin, Receptionist Sharill Conley, Town Planner Candace Daigle, Police 
Chief Vincent Baiocchetti, Public Works Director Bob Bennett, Parks and 
Recreation Director Janet Breton, General Assistance Director Donna Cilley, and 
Daily Sun Reporter Ray Carbone. 
 

Albert Akerstrom moved to accept the minutes of February 6, 2007 as 
written, Mark Roberts seconded.  

 
Linda Frawley asked that the following changes be made on page 2, 

paragraph 5 under Pleasant Valley Project to “whether this was the first 
Community Development Block Grant application since the Mill.” And on page 3, 
paragraph 3 under BRATT to “if there is any limit for the 20% match of staff in-
kind or time and asked how contributions were acknowledged for tax purposes.” 
And on page 5, paragraph 7 under Police Station project be changed to 
“mentioned that Gilford’s police station project proposal over the last 2 years was 
estimated at $2.1 million for 15,000 square feet. Deleting last sentence of that 
paragraph. 

 
With no further discussion Chairman Mitchell called for a vote. The vote 

was in favor as amended, the motion passed. 
 
Chairman Mitchell reviewed the MS-7, for those present. 
 
Ray Carbone inquired why insurance had gone up so much, and if the 

Town was issuing insurance to the call fire fighters. Town Administrator Jeanne 
Beaudin stated there is no insurance benefits for call fire fighters. She explained 
that the increase in health insurance was 5.5% this year; that there was no 
change in dental benefits; and that retirement rates also saw a significant 
increase. 

 
Ray Carbone inquired why there were no changes in the solid waste clean 

up since there is now recycling through Bestway Disposal and would there be 
any difference in the cost because of the new recycling program. Town 



Budget Committee Minutes 2 2/26/2007 

Administrator Beaudin explained that despite the apparent success of the new 
recycling facility, any financial benefit would not be seen until next year’s budget 
is compiled. Chairman Mitchell also stated that  $10,000 is for the purchase of 
recycling bins for the resident’s of Belmont to encourage the new recycling 
process. 

 
Resident, Donna Cilley, inquired why the estimated amounts on “Shared 

Revenues” had gone down and why the “Meals & Rooms Tax” had not changed 
from previous year. Town Administrator Beaudin explained that the Department 
of Revenue Administration does not give the final numbers until September, 
which would then be reflected on MS4 Revised Revenues, which are used to 
calculate the tax rate. 

 
With no further discussion on the actual budget, Chairman Mitchell then 

reviewed the Special Warrant Articles explaining what the Budget Committee 
recommended compared to the Board of Selectmen’s recommendations.  

 
With no further discussion on the Special Warrant Articles, Chairman 

Mitchell reviewed the budget for Sunray Shores Water District for those present. 
 
David Morse asked Town Administrator Beaudin what the estimated tax 

impact of the proposed budget and warrant articles would have under the Town’s 
current estimated land value. Town Administrator Beaudin stated current tax 
rates would be $9.95 per $1,000 of home value. David Morse noted it to be a 
10% increase. Town Administrator explained that this did not include estimated 
revenues coming into the Town.  

 
Ray Carbone inquired if subtotal 1 on page 8 would be the operating 

budget. Town Administrator stated it would.  
 
Chairman Mitchell closed the Public Hearing at 7:08 p.m.  
 
Ken Ellis moved to accept the budget as recommended by the Budget 

Committee, Linda Frawley seconded. Chairman Mitchell called for a vote. The 
vote was unanimous in favor. The motion passed.  

 
Cherie Willoughby wanted it noted the reason she did not re-run for the 

Budget Committee was because it stated on her document from the Town an end 
term of 2008. She felt it was unfair to have to be reappointed when the document 
states she is on Budget Committee until 2008. Chairman Mitchell mentioned, 
unfortunately, it was a typographical error and according to the RSA she could 
only be reappointed until the next elections in the upcoming year. He apologized 
that it wasn’t made clearer to her. 

 
Ray Carbone inquired of Chairman Mitchell how many openings were 

available for the budget committee. Chairman Mitchell explained that there are 4 



Budget Committee Minutes 3 2/26/2007 

3-year positions, and additionally there are two 1-year positions, which will be 
filled by appointment following the elections on March 13th. 

 
 At this time the quorum of budget committee members agreed to sign the 

MS-7 reports as well as the MS-37 reports for the Sunray Shores water district. 
 
Chairman Mitchell encouraged all to be at the Public Hearing for Bond 

Issues by the Board of Selectman next Tuesday, February 20, 2007. The Bond 
Hearing will be on the Police Station project, Pleasant Valley project, Rte 3 water 
line, and the well project. 

 
Chairman Mitchell thanked the committee for all their work and reminded 

everyone present that Town Elections will be held on Tuesday, March 13th and 
Town Meeting will be held on Saturday, March 17th.  

 
Ken Ellis moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:18 p.m. Albert Akerstrom   

seconded; the motion passed unanimously. 
 
Approved: 
 
             
Chairman Ronald Mitchell     Gary Flack 
 
             
Ronald Cormier, Selectman    Richard Fournier 
 
             
Kenneth Knowlton      Ken Ellis 
 
             
Norma Patten      Albert Akerstrom 
 
             
Cherie Willoughby       Linda Frawley 
 
             
David Morse       Mark Roberts 
 
         
Submitted by: Sharill Conley 
 
Date:     
 
 



Budget Committee Minutes 1 2/26/2007 

Municipal Budget Committee 
 

Public Hearing Minutes 
 

February 13, 2007, 6:30 P.M.  
 

Corner Meeting House 
 
 

Chairman Ron Mitchell called the meeting to order at 6:33 p.m.  Also 
present were committee members Ken Ellis, Albert Akerstrom, Linda Frawley, 
Mark Roberts, David Morse, Cherie Willoughby and Selectmen’s Representative 
Ronald Cormier. Others in attendance were Town Administrator K. Jeanne 
Beaudin, Receptionist Sharill Conley, Town Planner Candace Daigle, Police 
Chief Vincent Baiocchetti, Public Works Director Bob Bennett, Parks and 
Recreation Director Janet Breton, General Assistance Director Donna Cilley, and 
Daily Sun Reporter Ray Carbone. 
 

Albert Akerstrom moved to accept the minutes of February 6, 2007 as 
written, Mark Roberts seconded.  

 
Linda Frawley asked that the following changes be made on page 2, 

paragraph 5 under Pleasant Valley Project to “whether this was the first 
Community Development Block Grant application since the Mill.” And on page 3, 
paragraph 3 under BRATT to “if there is any limit for the 20% match of staff in-
kind or time and asked how contributions were acknowledged for tax purposes.” 
And on page 5, paragraph 7 under Police Station project be changed to 
“mentioned that Gilford’s police station project proposal over the last 2 years was 
estimated at $2.1 million for 15,000 square feet. Deleting last sentence of that 
paragraph. 

 
With no further discussion Chairman Mitchell called for a vote. The vote 

was in favor as amended, the motion passed. 
 
Chairman Mitchell reviewed the MS-7, for those present. 
 
Ray Carbone inquired why insurance had gone up so much, and if the 

Town was issuing insurance to the call fire fighters. Town Administrator Jeanne 
Beaudin stated there is no insurance benefits for call fire fighters. She explained 
that the increase in health insurance was 5.5% this year; that there was no 
change in dental benefits; and that retirement rates also saw a significant 
increase. 

 
Ray Carbone inquired why there were no changes in the solid waste clean 

up since there is now recycling through Bestway Disposal and would there be 
any difference in the cost because of the new recycling program. Town 



Budget Committee Minutes 2 2/26/2007 

Administrator Beaudin explained that despite the apparent success of the new 
recycling facility, any financial benefit would not be seen until next year’s budget 
is compiled. Chairman Mitchell also stated that  $10,000 is for the purchase of 
recycling bins for the resident’s of Belmont to encourage the new recycling 
process. 

 
Resident, Donna Cilley, inquired why the estimated amounts on “Shared 

Revenues” had gone down and why the “Meals & Rooms Tax” had not changed 
from previous year. Town Administrator Beaudin explained that the Department 
of Revenue Administration does not give the final numbers until September, 
which would then be reflected on MS4 Revised Revenues, which are used to 
calculate the tax rate. 

 
With no further discussion on the actual budget, Chairman Mitchell then 

reviewed the Special Warrant Articles explaining what the Budget Committee 
recommended compared to the Board of Selectmen’s recommendations.  

 
With no further discussion on the Special Warrant Articles, Chairman 

Mitchell reviewed the budget for Sunray Shores Water District for those present. 
 
David Morse asked Town Administrator Beaudin what the estimated tax 

impact of the proposed budget and warrant articles would have under the Town’s 
current estimated land value. Town Administrator Beaudin stated current tax 
rates would be $9.95 per $1,000 of home value. David Morse noted it to be a 
10% increase. Town Administrator explained that this did not include estimated 
revenues coming into the Town.  

 
Ray Carbone inquired if subtotal 1 on page 8 would be the operating 

budget. Town Administrator stated it would.  
 
Chairman Mitchell closed the Public Hearing at 7:08 p.m.  
 
Ken Ellis moved to accept the budget as recommended by the Budget 

Committee, Linda Frawley seconded. Chairman Mitchell called for a vote. The 
vote was unanimous in favor. The motion passed.  

 
Cherie Willoughby wanted it noted the reason she did not re-run for the 

Budget Committee was because it stated on her document from the Town an end 
term of 2008. She felt it was unfair to have to be reappointed when the document 
states she is on Budget Committee until 2008. Chairman Mitchell mentioned, 
unfortunately, it was a typographical error and according to the RSA she could 
only be reappointed until the next elections in the upcoming year. He apologized 
that it wasn’t made clearer to her. 

 
Ray Carbone inquired of Chairman Mitchell how many openings were 

available for the budget committee. Chairman Mitchell explained that there are 4 



Budget Committee Minutes 3 2/26/2007 

3-year positions, and additionally there are two 1-year positions, which will be 
filled by appointment following the elections on March 13th. 

 
 At this time the quorum of budget committee members agreed to sign the 

MS-7 reports as well as the MS-37 reports for the Sunray Shores water district. 
 
Chairman Mitchell encouraged all to be at the Public Hearing for Bond 

Issues by the Board of Selectman next Tuesday, February 20, 2007. The Bond 
Hearing will be on the Police Station project, Pleasant Valley project, Rte 3 water 
line, and the well project. 

 
Chairman Mitchell thanked the committee for all their work and reminded 

everyone present that Town Elections will be held on Tuesday, March 13th and 
Town Meeting will be held on Saturday, March 17th.  

 
Ken Ellis moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:18 p.m. Albert Akerstrom   

seconded; the motion passed unanimously. 
 
Approved: 
 
             
Chairman Ronald Mitchell     Gary Flack 
 
             
Ronald Cormier, Selectman    Richard Fournier 
 
             
Kenneth Knowlton      Ken Ellis 
 
             
Norma Patten      Albert Akerstrom 
 
             
Cherie Willoughby       Linda Frawley 
 
             
David Morse       Mark Roberts 
 
         
Submitted by: Sharill Conley 
 
Date:     
 
 



Budget Committee Minutes 1 2/26/2007 

Municipal Budget Committee 
 

Public Hearing Minutes 
 

February 13, 2007, 6:30 P.M.  
 

Corner Meeting House 
 
 

Chairman Ron Mitchell called the meeting to order at 6:33 p.m.  Also 
present were committee members Ken Ellis, Albert Akerstrom, Linda Frawley, 
Mark Roberts, David Morse, Cherie Willoughby and Selectmen’s Representative 
Ronald Cormier. Others in attendance were Town Administrator K. Jeanne 
Beaudin, Receptionist Sharill Conley, Town Planner Candace Daigle, Police 
Chief Vincent Baiocchetti, Public Works Director Bob Bennett, Parks and 
Recreation Director Janet Breton, General Assistance Director Donna Cilley, and 
Daily Sun Reporter Ray Carbone. 
 

Albert Akerstrom moved to accept the minutes of February 6, 2007 as 
written, Mark Roberts seconded.  

 
Linda Frawley asked that the following changes be made on page 2, 

paragraph 5 under Pleasant Valley Project to “whether this was the first 
Community Development Block Grant application since the Mill.” And on page 3, 
paragraph 3 under BRATT to “if there is any limit for the 20% match of staff in-
kind or time and asked how contributions were acknowledged for tax purposes.” 
And on page 5, paragraph 7 under Police Station project be changed to 
“mentioned that Gilford’s police station project proposal over the last 2 years was 
estimated at $2.1 million for 15,000 square feet. Deleting last sentence of that 
paragraph. 

 
With no further discussion Chairman Mitchell called for a vote. The vote 

was in favor as amended, the motion passed. 
 
Chairman Mitchell reviewed the MS-7, for those present. 
 
Ray Carbone inquired why insurance had gone up so much, and if the 

Town was issuing insurance to the call fire fighters. Town Administrator Jeanne 
Beaudin stated there is no insurance benefits for call fire fighters. She explained 
that the increase in health insurance was 5.5% this year; that there was no 
change in dental benefits; and that retirement rates also saw a significant 
increase. 

 
Ray Carbone inquired why there were no changes in the solid waste clean 

up since there is now recycling through Bestway Disposal and would there be 
any difference in the cost because of the new recycling program. Town 



Budget Committee Minutes 2 2/26/2007 

Administrator Beaudin explained that despite the apparent success of the new 
recycling facility, any financial benefit would not be seen until next year’s budget 
is compiled. Chairman Mitchell also stated that  $10,000 is for the purchase of 
recycling bins for the resident’s of Belmont to encourage the new recycling 
process. 

 
Resident, Donna Cilley, inquired why the estimated amounts on “Shared 

Revenues” had gone down and why the “Meals & Rooms Tax” had not changed 
from previous year. Town Administrator Beaudin explained that the Department 
of Revenue Administration does not give the final numbers until September, 
which would then be reflected on MS4 Revised Revenues, which are used to 
calculate the tax rate. 

 
With no further discussion on the actual budget, Chairman Mitchell then 

reviewed the Special Warrant Articles explaining what the Budget Committee 
recommended compared to the Board of Selectmen’s recommendations.  

 
With no further discussion on the Special Warrant Articles, Chairman 

Mitchell reviewed the budget for Sunray Shores Water District for those present. 
 
David Morse asked Town Administrator Beaudin what the estimated tax 

impact of the proposed budget and warrant articles would have under the Town’s 
current estimated land value. Town Administrator Beaudin stated current tax 
rates would be $9.95 per $1,000 of home value. David Morse noted it to be a 
10% increase. Town Administrator explained that this did not include estimated 
revenues coming into the Town.  

 
Ray Carbone inquired if subtotal 1 on page 8 would be the operating 

budget. Town Administrator stated it would.  
 
Chairman Mitchell closed the Public Hearing at 7:08 p.m.  
 
Ken Ellis moved to accept the budget as recommended by the Budget 

Committee, Linda Frawley seconded. Chairman Mitchell called for a vote. The 
vote was unanimous in favor. The motion passed.  

 
Cherie Willoughby wanted it noted the reason she did not re-run for the 

Budget Committee was because it stated on her document from the Town an end 
term of 2008. She felt it was unfair to have to be reappointed when the document 
states she is on Budget Committee until 2008. Chairman Mitchell mentioned, 
unfortunately, it was a typographical error and according to the RSA she could 
only be reappointed until the next elections in the upcoming year. He apologized 
that it wasn’t made clearer to her. 

 
Ray Carbone inquired of Chairman Mitchell how many openings were 

available for the budget committee. Chairman Mitchell explained that there are 4 



Budget Committee Minutes 3 2/26/2007 

3-year positions, and additionally there are two 1-year positions, which will be 
filled by appointment following the elections on March 13th. 

 
 At this time the quorum of budget committee members agreed to sign the 

MS-7 reports as well as the MS-37 reports for the Sunray Shores water district. 
 
Chairman Mitchell encouraged all to be at the Public Hearing for Bond 

Issues by the Board of Selectman next Tuesday, February 20, 2007. The Bond 
Hearing will be on the Police Station project, Pleasant Valley project, Rte 3 water 
line, and the well project. 

 
Chairman Mitchell thanked the committee for all their work and reminded 

everyone present that Town Elections will be held on Tuesday, March 13th and 
Town Meeting will be held on Saturday, March 17th.  

 
Ken Ellis moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:18 p.m. Albert Akerstrom   

seconded; the motion passed unanimously. 
 
Approved: 
 
             
Chairman Ronald Mitchell     Gary Flack 
 
             
Ronald Cormier, Selectman    Richard Fournier 
 
             
Kenneth Knowlton      Ken Ellis 
 
             
Norma Patten      Albert Akerstrom 
 
             
Cherie Willoughby       Linda Frawley 
 
             
David Morse       Mark Roberts 
 
         
Submitted by: Sharill Conley 
 
Date:     
 
 



Budget Committee Minutes 1 2/26/2007 

Municipal Budget Committee 
 

Public Hearing Minutes 
 

February 13, 2007, 6:30 P.M.  
 

Corner Meeting House 
 
 

Chairman Ron Mitchell called the meeting to order at 6:33 p.m.  Also 
present were committee members Ken Ellis, Albert Akerstrom, Linda Frawley, 
Mark Roberts, David Morse, Cherie Willoughby and Selectmen’s Representative 
Ronald Cormier. Others in attendance were Town Administrator K. Jeanne 
Beaudin, Receptionist Sharill Conley, Town Planner Candace Daigle, Police 
Chief Vincent Baiocchetti, Public Works Director Bob Bennett, Parks and 
Recreation Director Janet Breton, General Assistance Director Donna Cilley, and 
Daily Sun Reporter Ray Carbone. 
 

Albert Akerstrom moved to accept the minutes of February 6, 2007 as 
written, Mark Roberts seconded.  

 
Linda Frawley asked that the following changes be made on page 2, 

paragraph 5 under Pleasant Valley Project to “whether this was the first 
Community Development Block Grant application since the Mill.” And on page 3, 
paragraph 3 under BRATT to “if there is any limit for the 20% match of staff in-
kind or time and asked how contributions were acknowledged for tax purposes.” 
And on page 5, paragraph 7 under Police Station project be changed to 
“mentioned that Gilford’s police station project proposal over the last 2 years was 
estimated at $2.1 million for 15,000 square feet. Deleting last sentence of that 
paragraph. 

 
With no further discussion Chairman Mitchell called for a vote. The vote 

was in favor as amended, the motion passed. 
 
Chairman Mitchell reviewed the MS-7, for those present. 
 
Ray Carbone inquired why insurance had gone up so much, and if the 

Town was issuing insurance to the call fire fighters. Town Administrator Jeanne 
Beaudin stated there is no insurance benefits for call fire fighters. She explained 
that the increase in health insurance was 5.5% this year; that there was no 
change in dental benefits; and that retirement rates also saw a significant 
increase. 

 
Ray Carbone inquired why there were no changes in the solid waste clean 

up since there is now recycling through Bestway Disposal and would there be 
any difference in the cost because of the new recycling program. Town 



Budget Committee Minutes 2 2/26/2007 

Administrator Beaudin explained that despite the apparent success of the new 
recycling facility, any financial benefit would not be seen until next year’s budget 
is compiled. Chairman Mitchell also stated that  $10,000 is for the purchase of 
recycling bins for the resident’s of Belmont to encourage the new recycling 
process. 

 
Resident, Donna Cilley, inquired why the estimated amounts on “Shared 

Revenues” had gone down and why the “Meals & Rooms Tax” had not changed 
from previous year. Town Administrator Beaudin explained that the Department 
of Revenue Administration does not give the final numbers until September, 
which would then be reflected on MS4 Revised Revenues, which are used to 
calculate the tax rate. 

 
With no further discussion on the actual budget, Chairman Mitchell then 

reviewed the Special Warrant Articles explaining what the Budget Committee 
recommended compared to the Board of Selectmen’s recommendations.  

 
With no further discussion on the Special Warrant Articles, Chairman 

Mitchell reviewed the budget for Sunray Shores Water District for those present. 
 
David Morse asked Town Administrator Beaudin what the estimated tax 

impact of the proposed budget and warrant articles would have under the Town’s 
current estimated land value. Town Administrator Beaudin stated current tax 
rates would be $9.95 per $1,000 of home value. David Morse noted it to be a 
10% increase. Town Administrator explained that this did not include estimated 
revenues coming into the Town.  

 
Ray Carbone inquired if subtotal 1 on page 8 would be the operating 

budget. Town Administrator stated it would.  
 
Chairman Mitchell closed the Public Hearing at 7:08 p.m.  
 
Ken Ellis moved to accept the budget as recommended by the Budget 

Committee, Linda Frawley seconded. Chairman Mitchell called for a vote. The 
vote was unanimous in favor. The motion passed.  

 
Cherie Willoughby wanted it noted the reason she did not re-run for the 

Budget Committee was because it stated on her document from the Town an end 
term of 2008. She felt it was unfair to have to be reappointed when the document 
states she is on Budget Committee until 2008. Chairman Mitchell mentioned, 
unfortunately, it was a typographical error and according to the RSA she could 
only be reappointed until the next elections in the upcoming year. He apologized 
that it wasn’t made clearer to her. 

 
Ray Carbone inquired of Chairman Mitchell how many openings were 

available for the budget committee. Chairman Mitchell explained that there are 4 



Budget Committee Minutes 3 2/26/2007 

3-year positions, and additionally there are two 1-year positions, which will be 
filled by appointment following the elections on March 13th. 

 
 At this time the quorum of budget committee members agreed to sign the 

MS-7 reports as well as the MS-37 reports for the Sunray Shores water district. 
 
Chairman Mitchell encouraged all to be at the Public Hearing for Bond 

Issues by the Board of Selectman next Tuesday, February 20, 2007. The Bond 
Hearing will be on the Police Station project, Pleasant Valley project, Rte 3 water 
line, and the well project. 

 
Chairman Mitchell thanked the committee for all their work and reminded 

everyone present that Town Elections will be held on Tuesday, March 13th and 
Town Meeting will be held on Saturday, March 17th.  

 
Ken Ellis moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:18 p.m. Albert Akerstrom   

seconded; the motion passed unanimously. 
 
Approved: 
 
             
Chairman Ronald Mitchell     Gary Flack 
 
             
Ronald Cormier, Selectman    Richard Fournier 
 
             
Kenneth Knowlton      Ken Ellis 
 
             
Norma Patten      Albert Akerstrom 
 
             
Cherie Willoughby       Linda Frawley 
 
             
David Morse       Mark Roberts 
 
         
Submitted by: Sharill Conley 
 
Date:     
 
 



Budget Committee Minutes 1 2/26/2007 

Municipal Budget Committee 
 

Public Hearing Minutes 
 

February 13, 2007, 6:30 P.M.  
 

Corner Meeting House 
 
 

Chairman Ron Mitchell called the meeting to order at 6:33 p.m.  Also 
present were committee members Ken Ellis, Albert Akerstrom, Linda Frawley, 
Mark Roberts, David Morse, Cherie Willoughby and Selectmen’s Representative 
Ronald Cormier. Others in attendance were Town Administrator K. Jeanne 
Beaudin, Receptionist Sharill Conley, Town Planner Candace Daigle, Police 
Chief Vincent Baiocchetti, Public Works Director Bob Bennett, Parks and 
Recreation Director Janet Breton, General Assistance Director Donna Cilley, and 
Daily Sun Reporter Ray Carbone. 
 

Albert Akerstrom moved to accept the minutes of February 6, 2007 as 
written, Mark Roberts seconded.  

 
Linda Frawley asked that the following changes be made on page 2, 

paragraph 5 under Pleasant Valley Project to “whether this was the first 
Community Development Block Grant application since the Mill.” And on page 3, 
paragraph 3 under BRATT to “if there is any limit for the 20% match of staff in-
kind or time and asked how contributions were acknowledged for tax purposes.” 
And on page 5, paragraph 7 under Police Station project be changed to 
“mentioned that Gilford’s police station project proposal over the last 2 years was 
estimated at $2.1 million for 15,000 square feet. Deleting last sentence of that 
paragraph. 

 
With no further discussion Chairman Mitchell called for a vote. The vote 

was in favor as amended, the motion passed. 
 
Chairman Mitchell reviewed the MS-7, for those present. 
 
Ray Carbone inquired why insurance had gone up so much, and if the 

Town was issuing insurance to the call fire fighters. Town Administrator Jeanne 
Beaudin stated there is no insurance benefits for call fire fighters. She explained 
that the increase in health insurance was 5.5% this year; that there was no 
change in dental benefits; and that retirement rates also saw a significant 
increase. 

 
Ray Carbone inquired why there were no changes in the solid waste clean 

up since there is now recycling through Bestway Disposal and would there be 
any difference in the cost because of the new recycling program. Town 



Budget Committee Minutes 2 2/26/2007 

Administrator Beaudin explained that despite the apparent success of the new 
recycling facility, any financial benefit would not be seen until next year’s budget 
is compiled. Chairman Mitchell also stated that  $10,000 is for the purchase of 
recycling bins for the resident’s of Belmont to encourage the new recycling 
process. 

 
Resident, Donna Cilley, inquired why the estimated amounts on “Shared 

Revenues” had gone down and why the “Meals & Rooms Tax” had not changed 
from previous year. Town Administrator Beaudin explained that the Department 
of Revenue Administration does not give the final numbers until September, 
which would then be reflected on MS4 Revised Revenues, which are used to 
calculate the tax rate. 

 
With no further discussion on the actual budget, Chairman Mitchell then 

reviewed the Special Warrant Articles explaining what the Budget Committee 
recommended compared to the Board of Selectmen’s recommendations.  

 
With no further discussion on the Special Warrant Articles, Chairman 

Mitchell reviewed the budget for Sunray Shores Water District for those present. 
 
David Morse asked Town Administrator Beaudin what the estimated tax 

impact of the proposed budget and warrant articles would have under the Town’s 
current estimated land value. Town Administrator Beaudin stated current tax 
rates would be $9.95 per $1,000 of home value. David Morse noted it to be a 
10% increase. Town Administrator explained that this did not include estimated 
revenues coming into the Town.  

 
Ray Carbone inquired if subtotal 1 on page 8 would be the operating 

budget. Town Administrator stated it would.  
 
Chairman Mitchell closed the Public Hearing at 7:08 p.m.  
 
Ken Ellis moved to accept the budget as recommended by the Budget 

Committee, Linda Frawley seconded. Chairman Mitchell called for a vote. The 
vote was unanimous in favor. The motion passed.  

 
Cherie Willoughby wanted it noted the reason she did not re-run for the 

Budget Committee was because it stated on her document from the Town an end 
term of 2008. She felt it was unfair to have to be reappointed when the document 
states she is on Budget Committee until 2008. Chairman Mitchell mentioned, 
unfortunately, it was a typographical error and according to the RSA she could 
only be reappointed until the next elections in the upcoming year. He apologized 
that it wasn’t made clearer to her. 

 
Ray Carbone inquired of Chairman Mitchell how many openings were 

available for the budget committee. Chairman Mitchell explained that there are 4 



Budget Committee Minutes 3 2/26/2007 

3-year positions, and additionally there are two 1-year positions, which will be 
filled by appointment following the elections on March 13th. 

 
 At this time the quorum of budget committee members agreed to sign the 

MS-7 reports as well as the MS-37 reports for the Sunray Shores water district. 
 
Chairman Mitchell encouraged all to be at the Public Hearing for Bond 

Issues by the Board of Selectman next Tuesday, February 20, 2007. The Bond 
Hearing will be on the Police Station project, Pleasant Valley project, Rte 3 water 
line, and the well project. 

 
Chairman Mitchell thanked the committee for all their work and reminded 

everyone present that Town Elections will be held on Tuesday, March 13th and 
Town Meeting will be held on Saturday, March 17th.  

 
Ken Ellis moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:18 p.m. Albert Akerstrom   

seconded; the motion passed unanimously. 
 
Approved: 
 
             
Chairman Ronald Mitchell     Gary Flack 
 
             
Ronald Cormier, Selectman    Richard Fournier 
 
             
Kenneth Knowlton      Ken Ellis 
 
             
Norma Patten      Albert Akerstrom 
 
             
Cherie Willoughby       Linda Frawley 
 
             
David Morse       Mark Roberts 
 
         
Submitted by: Sharill Conley 
 
Date:     
 
 



Budget Committee Minutes 1 2/26/2007 

Municipal Budget Committee 
 

Public Hearing Minutes 
 

February 13, 2007, 6:30 P.M.  
 

Corner Meeting House 
 
 

Chairman Ron Mitchell called the meeting to order at 6:33 p.m.  Also 
present were committee members Ken Ellis, Albert Akerstrom, Linda Frawley, 
Mark Roberts, David Morse, Cherie Willoughby and Selectmen’s Representative 
Ronald Cormier. Others in attendance were Town Administrator K. Jeanne 
Beaudin, Receptionist Sharill Conley, Town Planner Candace Daigle, Police 
Chief Vincent Baiocchetti, Public Works Director Bob Bennett, Parks and 
Recreation Director Janet Breton, General Assistance Director Donna Cilley, and 
Daily Sun Reporter Ray Carbone. 
 

Albert Akerstrom moved to accept the minutes of February 6, 2007 as 
written, Mark Roberts seconded.  

 
Linda Frawley asked that the following changes be made on page 2, 

paragraph 5 under Pleasant Valley Project to “whether this was the first 
Community Development Block Grant application since the Mill.” And on page 3, 
paragraph 3 under BRATT to “if there is any limit for the 20% match of staff in-
kind or time and asked how contributions were acknowledged for tax purposes.” 
And on page 5, paragraph 7 under Police Station project be changed to 
“mentioned that Gilford’s police station project proposal over the last 2 years was 
estimated at $2.1 million for 15,000 square feet. Deleting last sentence of that 
paragraph. 

 
With no further discussion Chairman Mitchell called for a vote. The vote 

was in favor as amended, the motion passed. 
 
Chairman Mitchell reviewed the MS-7, for those present. 
 
Ray Carbone inquired why insurance had gone up so much, and if the 

Town was issuing insurance to the call fire fighters. Town Administrator Jeanne 
Beaudin stated there is no insurance benefits for call fire fighters. She explained 
that the increase in health insurance was 5.5% this year; that there was no 
change in dental benefits; and that retirement rates also saw a significant 
increase. 

 
Ray Carbone inquired why there were no changes in the solid waste clean 

up since there is now recycling through Bestway Disposal and would there be 
any difference in the cost because of the new recycling program. Town 



Budget Committee Minutes 2 2/26/2007 

Administrator Beaudin explained that despite the apparent success of the new 
recycling facility, any financial benefit would not be seen until next year’s budget 
is compiled. Chairman Mitchell also stated that  $10,000 is for the purchase of 
recycling bins for the resident’s of Belmont to encourage the new recycling 
process. 

 
Resident, Donna Cilley, inquired why the estimated amounts on “Shared 

Revenues” had gone down and why the “Meals & Rooms Tax” had not changed 
from previous year. Town Administrator Beaudin explained that the Department 
of Revenue Administration does not give the final numbers until September, 
which would then be reflected on MS4 Revised Revenues, which are used to 
calculate the tax rate. 

 
With no further discussion on the actual budget, Chairman Mitchell then 

reviewed the Special Warrant Articles explaining what the Budget Committee 
recommended compared to the Board of Selectmen’s recommendations.  

 
With no further discussion on the Special Warrant Articles, Chairman 

Mitchell reviewed the budget for Sunray Shores Water District for those present. 
 
David Morse asked Town Administrator Beaudin what the estimated tax 

impact of the proposed budget and warrant articles would have under the Town’s 
current estimated land value. Town Administrator Beaudin stated current tax 
rates would be $9.95 per $1,000 of home value. David Morse noted it to be a 
10% increase. Town Administrator explained that this did not include estimated 
revenues coming into the Town.  

 
Ray Carbone inquired if subtotal 1 on page 8 would be the operating 

budget. Town Administrator stated it would.  
 
Chairman Mitchell closed the Public Hearing at 7:08 p.m.  
 
Ken Ellis moved to accept the budget as recommended by the Budget 

Committee, Linda Frawley seconded. Chairman Mitchell called for a vote. The 
vote was unanimous in favor. The motion passed.  

 
Cherie Willoughby wanted it noted the reason she did not re-run for the 

Budget Committee was because it stated on her document from the Town an end 
term of 2008. She felt it was unfair to have to be reappointed when the document 
states she is on Budget Committee until 2008. Chairman Mitchell mentioned, 
unfortunately, it was a typographical error and according to the RSA she could 
only be reappointed until the next elections in the upcoming year. He apologized 
that it wasn’t made clearer to her. 

 
Ray Carbone inquired of Chairman Mitchell how many openings were 

available for the budget committee. Chairman Mitchell explained that there are 4 



Budget Committee Minutes 3 2/26/2007 

3-year positions, and additionally there are two 1-year positions, which will be 
filled by appointment following the elections on March 13th. 

 
 At this time the quorum of budget committee members agreed to sign the 

MS-7 reports as well as the MS-37 reports for the Sunray Shores water district. 
 
Chairman Mitchell encouraged all to be at the Public Hearing for Bond 

Issues by the Board of Selectman next Tuesday, February 20, 2007. The Bond 
Hearing will be on the Police Station project, Pleasant Valley project, Rte 3 water 
line, and the well project. 

 
Chairman Mitchell thanked the committee for all their work and reminded 

everyone present that Town Elections will be held on Tuesday, March 13th and 
Town Meeting will be held on Saturday, March 17th.  

 
Ken Ellis moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:18 p.m. Albert Akerstrom   

seconded; the motion passed unanimously. 
 
Approved: 
 
             
Chairman Ronald Mitchell     Gary Flack 
 
             
Ronald Cormier, Selectman    Richard Fournier 
 
             
Kenneth Knowlton      Ken Ellis 
 
             
Norma Patten      Albert Akerstrom 
 
             
Cherie Willoughby       Linda Frawley 
 
             
David Morse       Mark Roberts 
 
         
Submitted by: Sharill Conley 
 
Date:     
 
 



Budget Committee Minutes 1 2/26/2007 

Municipal Budget Committee 
 

Public Hearing Minutes 
 

February 13, 2007, 6:30 P.M.  
 

Corner Meeting House 
 
 

Chairman Ron Mitchell called the meeting to order at 6:33 p.m.  Also 
present were committee members Ken Ellis, Albert Akerstrom, Linda Frawley, 
Mark Roberts, David Morse, Cherie Willoughby and Selectmen’s Representative 
Ronald Cormier. Others in attendance were Town Administrator K. Jeanne 
Beaudin, Receptionist Sharill Conley, Town Planner Candace Daigle, Police 
Chief Vincent Baiocchetti, Public Works Director Bob Bennett, Parks and 
Recreation Director Janet Breton, General Assistance Director Donna Cilley, and 
Daily Sun Reporter Ray Carbone. 
 

Albert Akerstrom moved to accept the minutes of February 6, 2007 as 
written, Mark Roberts seconded.  

 
Linda Frawley asked that the following changes be made on page 2, 

paragraph 5 under Pleasant Valley Project to “whether this was the first 
Community Development Block Grant application since the Mill.” And on page 3, 
paragraph 3 under BRATT to “if there is any limit for the 20% match of staff in-
kind or time and asked how contributions were acknowledged for tax purposes.” 
And on page 5, paragraph 7 under Police Station project be changed to 
“mentioned that Gilford’s police station project proposal over the last 2 years was 
estimated at $2.1 million for 15,000 square feet. Deleting last sentence of that 
paragraph. 

 
With no further discussion Chairman Mitchell called for a vote. The vote 

was in favor as amended, the motion passed. 
 
Chairman Mitchell reviewed the MS-7, for those present. 
 
Ray Carbone inquired why insurance had gone up so much, and if the 

Town was issuing insurance to the call fire fighters. Town Administrator Jeanne 
Beaudin stated there is no insurance benefits for call fire fighters. She explained 
that the increase in health insurance was 5.5% this year; that there was no 
change in dental benefits; and that retirement rates also saw a significant 
increase. 

 
Ray Carbone inquired why there were no changes in the solid waste clean 

up since there is now recycling through Bestway Disposal and would there be 
any difference in the cost because of the new recycling program. Town 



Budget Committee Minutes 2 2/26/2007 

Administrator Beaudin explained that despite the apparent success of the new 
recycling facility, any financial benefit would not be seen until next year’s budget 
is compiled. Chairman Mitchell also stated that  $10,000 is for the purchase of 
recycling bins for the resident’s of Belmont to encourage the new recycling 
process. 

 
Resident, Donna Cilley, inquired why the estimated amounts on “Shared 

Revenues” had gone down and why the “Meals & Rooms Tax” had not changed 
from previous year. Town Administrator Beaudin explained that the Department 
of Revenue Administration does not give the final numbers until September, 
which would then be reflected on MS4 Revised Revenues, which are used to 
calculate the tax rate. 

 
With no further discussion on the actual budget, Chairman Mitchell then 

reviewed the Special Warrant Articles explaining what the Budget Committee 
recommended compared to the Board of Selectmen’s recommendations.  

 
With no further discussion on the Special Warrant Articles, Chairman 

Mitchell reviewed the budget for Sunray Shores Water District for those present. 
 
David Morse asked Town Administrator Beaudin what the estimated tax 

impact of the proposed budget and warrant articles would have under the Town’s 
current estimated land value. Town Administrator Beaudin stated current tax 
rates would be $9.95 per $1,000 of home value. David Morse noted it to be a 
10% increase. Town Administrator explained that this did not include estimated 
revenues coming into the Town.  

 
Ray Carbone inquired if subtotal 1 on page 8 would be the operating 

budget. Town Administrator stated it would.  
 
Chairman Mitchell closed the Public Hearing at 7:08 p.m.  
 
Ken Ellis moved to accept the budget as recommended by the Budget 

Committee, Linda Frawley seconded. Chairman Mitchell called for a vote. The 
vote was unanimous in favor. The motion passed.  

 
Cherie Willoughby wanted it noted the reason she did not re-run for the 

Budget Committee was because it stated on her document from the Town an end 
term of 2008. She felt it was unfair to have to be reappointed when the document 
states she is on Budget Committee until 2008. Chairman Mitchell mentioned, 
unfortunately, it was a typographical error and according to the RSA she could 
only be reappointed until the next elections in the upcoming year. He apologized 
that it wasn’t made clearer to her. 

 
Ray Carbone inquired of Chairman Mitchell how many openings were 

available for the budget committee. Chairman Mitchell explained that there are 4 



Budget Committee Minutes 3 2/26/2007 

3-year positions, and additionally there are two 1-year positions, which will be 
filled by appointment following the elections on March 13th. 

 
 At this time the quorum of budget committee members agreed to sign the 

MS-7 reports as well as the MS-37 reports for the Sunray Shores water district. 
 
Chairman Mitchell encouraged all to be at the Public Hearing for Bond 

Issues by the Board of Selectman next Tuesday, February 20, 2007. The Bond 
Hearing will be on the Police Station project, Pleasant Valley project, Rte 3 water 
line, and the well project. 

 
Chairman Mitchell thanked the committee for all their work and reminded 

everyone present that Town Elections will be held on Tuesday, March 13th and 
Town Meeting will be held on Saturday, March 17th.  

 
Ken Ellis moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:18 p.m. Albert Akerstrom   

seconded; the motion passed unanimously. 
 
Approved: 
 
             
Chairman Ronald Mitchell     Gary Flack 
 
             
Ronald Cormier, Selectman    Richard Fournier 
 
             
Kenneth Knowlton      Ken Ellis 
 
             
Norma Patten      Albert Akerstrom 
 
             
Cherie Willoughby       Linda Frawley 
 
             
David Morse       Mark Roberts 
 
         
Submitted by: Sharill Conley 
 
Date:     
 
 



Budget Committee Minutes 1 2/26/2007 

Municipal Budget Committee 
 

Public Hearing Minutes 
 

February 13, 2007, 6:30 P.M.  
 

Corner Meeting House 
 
 

Chairman Ron Mitchell called the meeting to order at 6:33 p.m.  Also 
present were committee members Ken Ellis, Albert Akerstrom, Linda Frawley, 
Mark Roberts, David Morse, Cherie Willoughby and Selectmen’s Representative 
Ronald Cormier. Others in attendance were Town Administrator K. Jeanne 
Beaudin, Receptionist Sharill Conley, Town Planner Candace Daigle, Police 
Chief Vincent Baiocchetti, Public Works Director Bob Bennett, Parks and 
Recreation Director Janet Breton, General Assistance Director Donna Cilley, and 
Daily Sun Reporter Ray Carbone. 
 

Albert Akerstrom moved to accept the minutes of February 6, 2007 as 
written, Mark Roberts seconded.  

 
Linda Frawley asked that the following changes be made on page 2, 

paragraph 5 under Pleasant Valley Project to “whether this was the first 
Community Development Block Grant application since the Mill.” And on page 3, 
paragraph 3 under BRATT to “if there is any limit for the 20% match of staff in-
kind or time and asked how contributions were acknowledged for tax purposes.” 
And on page 5, paragraph 7 under Police Station project be changed to 
“mentioned that Gilford’s police station project proposal over the last 2 years was 
estimated at $2.1 million for 15,000 square feet. Deleting last sentence of that 
paragraph. 

 
With no further discussion Chairman Mitchell called for a vote. The vote 

was in favor as amended, the motion passed. 
 
Chairman Mitchell reviewed the MS-7, for those present. 
 
Ray Carbone inquired why insurance had gone up so much, and if the 

Town was issuing insurance to the call fire fighters. Town Administrator Jeanne 
Beaudin stated there is no insurance benefits for call fire fighters. She explained 
that the increase in health insurance was 5.5% this year; that there was no 
change in dental benefits; and that retirement rates also saw a significant 
increase. 

 
Ray Carbone inquired why there were no changes in the solid waste clean 

up since there is now recycling through Bestway Disposal and would there be 
any difference in the cost because of the new recycling program. Town 



Budget Committee Minutes 2 2/26/2007 

Administrator Beaudin explained that despite the apparent success of the new 
recycling facility, any financial benefit would not be seen until next year’s budget 
is compiled. Chairman Mitchell also stated that  $10,000 is for the purchase of 
recycling bins for the resident’s of Belmont to encourage the new recycling 
process. 

 
Resident, Donna Cilley, inquired why the estimated amounts on “Shared 

Revenues” had gone down and why the “Meals & Rooms Tax” had not changed 
from previous year. Town Administrator Beaudin explained that the Department 
of Revenue Administration does not give the final numbers until September, 
which would then be reflected on MS4 Revised Revenues, which are used to 
calculate the tax rate. 

 
With no further discussion on the actual budget, Chairman Mitchell then 

reviewed the Special Warrant Articles explaining what the Budget Committee 
recommended compared to the Board of Selectmen’s recommendations.  

 
With no further discussion on the Special Warrant Articles, Chairman 

Mitchell reviewed the budget for Sunray Shores Water District for those present. 
 
David Morse asked Town Administrator Beaudin what the estimated tax 

impact of the proposed budget and warrant articles would have under the Town’s 
current estimated land value. Town Administrator Beaudin stated current tax 
rates would be $9.95 per $1,000 of home value. David Morse noted it to be a 
10% increase. Town Administrator explained that this did not include estimated 
revenues coming into the Town.  

 
Ray Carbone inquired if subtotal 1 on page 8 would be the operating 

budget. Town Administrator stated it would.  
 
Chairman Mitchell closed the Public Hearing at 7:08 p.m.  
 
Ken Ellis moved to accept the budget as recommended by the Budget 

Committee, Linda Frawley seconded. Chairman Mitchell called for a vote. The 
vote was unanimous in favor. The motion passed.  

 
Cherie Willoughby wanted it noted the reason she did not re-run for the 

Budget Committee was because it stated on her document from the Town an end 
term of 2008. She felt it was unfair to have to be reappointed when the document 
states she is on Budget Committee until 2008. Chairman Mitchell mentioned, 
unfortunately, it was a typographical error and according to the RSA she could 
only be reappointed until the next elections in the upcoming year. He apologized 
that it wasn’t made clearer to her. 

 
Ray Carbone inquired of Chairman Mitchell how many openings were 

available for the budget committee. Chairman Mitchell explained that there are 4 



Budget Committee Minutes 3 2/26/2007 

3-year positions, and additionally there are two 1-year positions, which will be 
filled by appointment following the elections on March 13th. 

 
 At this time the quorum of budget committee members agreed to sign the 

MS-7 reports as well as the MS-37 reports for the Sunray Shores water district. 
 
Chairman Mitchell encouraged all to be at the Public Hearing for Bond 

Issues by the Board of Selectman next Tuesday, February 20, 2007. The Bond 
Hearing will be on the Police Station project, Pleasant Valley project, Rte 3 water 
line, and the well project. 

 
Chairman Mitchell thanked the committee for all their work and reminded 

everyone present that Town Elections will be held on Tuesday, March 13th and 
Town Meeting will be held on Saturday, March 17th.  

 
Ken Ellis moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:18 p.m. Albert Akerstrom   

seconded; the motion passed unanimously. 
 
Approved: 
 
             
Chairman Ronald Mitchell     Gary Flack 
 
             
Ronald Cormier, Selectman    Richard Fournier 
 
             
Kenneth Knowlton      Ken Ellis 
 
             
Norma Patten      Albert Akerstrom 
 
             
Cherie Willoughby       Linda Frawley 
 
             
David Morse       Mark Roberts 
 
         
Submitted by: Sharill Conley 
 
Date:     
 
 



Budget Committee Minutes 1 2/26/2007 

Municipal Budget Committee 
 

Public Hearing Minutes 
 

February 13, 2007, 6:30 P.M.  
 

Corner Meeting House 
 
 

Chairman Ron Mitchell called the meeting to order at 6:33 p.m.  Also 
present were committee members Ken Ellis, Albert Akerstrom, Linda Frawley, 
Mark Roberts, David Morse, Cherie Willoughby and Selectmen’s Representative 
Ronald Cormier. Others in attendance were Town Administrator K. Jeanne 
Beaudin, Receptionist Sharill Conley, Town Planner Candace Daigle, Police 
Chief Vincent Baiocchetti, Public Works Director Bob Bennett, Parks and 
Recreation Director Janet Breton, General Assistance Director Donna Cilley, and 
Daily Sun Reporter Ray Carbone. 
 

Albert Akerstrom moved to accept the minutes of February 6, 2007 as 
written, Mark Roberts seconded.  

 
Linda Frawley asked that the following changes be made on page 2, 

paragraph 5 under Pleasant Valley Project to “whether this was the first 
Community Development Block Grant application since the Mill.” And on page 3, 
paragraph 3 under BRATT to “if there is any limit for the 20% match of staff in-
kind or time and asked how contributions were acknowledged for tax purposes.” 
And on page 5, paragraph 7 under Police Station project be changed to 
“mentioned that Gilford’s police station project proposal over the last 2 years was 
estimated at $2.1 million for 15,000 square feet. Deleting last sentence of that 
paragraph. 

 
With no further discussion Chairman Mitchell called for a vote. The vote 

was in favor as amended, the motion passed. 
 
Chairman Mitchell reviewed the MS-7, for those present. 
 
Ray Carbone inquired why insurance had gone up so much, and if the 

Town was issuing insurance to the call fire fighters. Town Administrator Jeanne 
Beaudin stated there is no insurance benefits for call fire fighters. She explained 
that the increase in health insurance was 5.5% this year; that there was no 
change in dental benefits; and that retirement rates also saw a significant 
increase. 

 
Ray Carbone inquired why there were no changes in the solid waste clean 

up since there is now recycling through Bestway Disposal and would there be 
any difference in the cost because of the new recycling program. Town 



Budget Committee Minutes 2 2/26/2007 

Administrator Beaudin explained that despite the apparent success of the new 
recycling facility, any financial benefit would not be seen until next year’s budget 
is compiled. Chairman Mitchell also stated that  $10,000 is for the purchase of 
recycling bins for the resident’s of Belmont to encourage the new recycling 
process. 

 
Resident, Donna Cilley, inquired why the estimated amounts on “Shared 

Revenues” had gone down and why the “Meals & Rooms Tax” had not changed 
from previous year. Town Administrator Beaudin explained that the Department 
of Revenue Administration does not give the final numbers until September, 
which would then be reflected on MS4 Revised Revenues, which are used to 
calculate the tax rate. 

 
With no further discussion on the actual budget, Chairman Mitchell then 

reviewed the Special Warrant Articles explaining what the Budget Committee 
recommended compared to the Board of Selectmen’s recommendations.  

 
With no further discussion on the Special Warrant Articles, Chairman 

Mitchell reviewed the budget for Sunray Shores Water District for those present. 
 
David Morse asked Town Administrator Beaudin what the estimated tax 

impact of the proposed budget and warrant articles would have under the Town’s 
current estimated land value. Town Administrator Beaudin stated current tax 
rates would be $9.95 per $1,000 of home value. David Morse noted it to be a 
10% increase. Town Administrator explained that this did not include estimated 
revenues coming into the Town.  

 
Ray Carbone inquired if subtotal 1 on page 8 would be the operating 

budget. Town Administrator stated it would.  
 
Chairman Mitchell closed the Public Hearing at 7:08 p.m.  
 
Ken Ellis moved to accept the budget as recommended by the Budget 

Committee, Linda Frawley seconded. Chairman Mitchell called for a vote. The 
vote was unanimous in favor. The motion passed.  

 
Cherie Willoughby wanted it noted the reason she did not re-run for the 

Budget Committee was because it stated on her document from the Town an end 
term of 2008. She felt it was unfair to have to be reappointed when the document 
states she is on Budget Committee until 2008. Chairman Mitchell mentioned, 
unfortunately, it was a typographical error and according to the RSA she could 
only be reappointed until the next elections in the upcoming year. He apologized 
that it wasn’t made clearer to her. 

 
Ray Carbone inquired of Chairman Mitchell how many openings were 

available for the budget committee. Chairman Mitchell explained that there are 4 



Budget Committee Minutes 3 2/26/2007 

3-year positions, and additionally there are two 1-year positions, which will be 
filled by appointment following the elections on March 13th. 

 
 At this time the quorum of budget committee members agreed to sign the 

MS-7 reports as well as the MS-37 reports for the Sunray Shores water district. 
 
Chairman Mitchell encouraged all to be at the Public Hearing for Bond 

Issues by the Board of Selectman next Tuesday, February 20, 2007. The Bond 
Hearing will be on the Police Station project, Pleasant Valley project, Rte 3 water 
line, and the well project. 

 
Chairman Mitchell thanked the committee for all their work and reminded 

everyone present that Town Elections will be held on Tuesday, March 13th and 
Town Meeting will be held on Saturday, March 17th.  

 
Ken Ellis moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:18 p.m. Albert Akerstrom   

seconded; the motion passed unanimously. 
 
Approved: 
 
             
Chairman Ronald Mitchell     Gary Flack 
 
             
Ronald Cormier, Selectman    Richard Fournier 
 
             
Kenneth Knowlton      Ken Ellis 
 
             
Norma Patten      Albert Akerstrom 
 
             
Cherie Willoughby       Linda Frawley 
 
             
David Morse       Mark Roberts 
 
         
Submitted by: Sharill Conley 
 
Date:     
 
 



Budget Committee Minutes 1 2/26/2007 

Municipal Budget Committee 
 

Public Hearing Minutes 
 

February 13, 2007, 6:30 P.M.  
 

Corner Meeting House 
 
 

Chairman Ron Mitchell called the meeting to order at 6:33 p.m.  Also 
present were committee members Ken Ellis, Albert Akerstrom, Linda Frawley, 
Mark Roberts, David Morse, Cherie Willoughby and Selectmen’s Representative 
Ronald Cormier. Others in attendance were Town Administrator K. Jeanne 
Beaudin, Receptionist Sharill Conley, Town Planner Candace Daigle, Police 
Chief Vincent Baiocchetti, Public Works Director Bob Bennett, Parks and 
Recreation Director Janet Breton, General Assistance Director Donna Cilley, and 
Daily Sun Reporter Ray Carbone. 
 

Albert Akerstrom moved to accept the minutes of February 6, 2007 as 
written, Mark Roberts seconded.  

 
Linda Frawley asked that the following changes be made on page 2, 

paragraph 5 under Pleasant Valley Project to “whether this was the first 
Community Development Block Grant application since the Mill.” And on page 3, 
paragraph 3 under BRATT to “if there is any limit for the 20% match of staff in-
kind or time and asked how contributions were acknowledged for tax purposes.” 
And on page 5, paragraph 7 under Police Station project be changed to 
“mentioned that Gilford’s police station project proposal over the last 2 years was 
estimated at $2.1 million for 15,000 square feet. Deleting last sentence of that 
paragraph. 

 
With no further discussion Chairman Mitchell called for a vote. The vote 

was in favor as amended, the motion passed. 
 
Chairman Mitchell reviewed the MS-7, for those present. 
 
Ray Carbone inquired why insurance had gone up so much, and if the 

Town was issuing insurance to the call fire fighters. Town Administrator Jeanne 
Beaudin stated there is no insurance benefits for call fire fighters. She explained 
that the increase in health insurance was 5.5% this year; that there was no 
change in dental benefits; and that retirement rates also saw a significant 
increase. 

 
Ray Carbone inquired why there were no changes in the solid waste clean 

up since there is now recycling through Bestway Disposal and would there be 
any difference in the cost because of the new recycling program. Town 



Budget Committee Minutes 2 2/26/2007 

Administrator Beaudin explained that despite the apparent success of the new 
recycling facility, any financial benefit would not be seen until next year’s budget 
is compiled. Chairman Mitchell also stated that  $10,000 is for the purchase of 
recycling bins for the resident’s of Belmont to encourage the new recycling 
process. 

 
Resident, Donna Cilley, inquired why the estimated amounts on “Shared 

Revenues” had gone down and why the “Meals & Rooms Tax” had not changed 
from previous year. Town Administrator Beaudin explained that the Department 
of Revenue Administration does not give the final numbers until September, 
which would then be reflected on MS4 Revised Revenues, which are used to 
calculate the tax rate. 

 
With no further discussion on the actual budget, Chairman Mitchell then 

reviewed the Special Warrant Articles explaining what the Budget Committee 
recommended compared to the Board of Selectmen’s recommendations.  

 
With no further discussion on the Special Warrant Articles, Chairman 

Mitchell reviewed the budget for Sunray Shores Water District for those present. 
 
David Morse asked Town Administrator Beaudin what the estimated tax 

impact of the proposed budget and warrant articles would have under the Town’s 
current estimated land value. Town Administrator Beaudin stated current tax 
rates would be $9.95 per $1,000 of home value. David Morse noted it to be a 
10% increase. Town Administrator explained that this did not include estimated 
revenues coming into the Town.  

 
Ray Carbone inquired if subtotal 1 on page 8 would be the operating 

budget. Town Administrator stated it would.  
 
Chairman Mitchell closed the Public Hearing at 7:08 p.m.  
 
Ken Ellis moved to accept the budget as recommended by the Budget 

Committee, Linda Frawley seconded. Chairman Mitchell called for a vote. The 
vote was unanimous in favor. The motion passed.  

 
Cherie Willoughby wanted it noted the reason she did not re-run for the 

Budget Committee was because it stated on her document from the Town an end 
term of 2008. She felt it was unfair to have to be reappointed when the document 
states she is on Budget Committee until 2008. Chairman Mitchell mentioned, 
unfortunately, it was a typographical error and according to the RSA she could 
only be reappointed until the next elections in the upcoming year. He apologized 
that it wasn’t made clearer to her. 

 
Ray Carbone inquired of Chairman Mitchell how many openings were 

available for the budget committee. Chairman Mitchell explained that there are 4 



Budget Committee Minutes 3 2/26/2007 

3-year positions, and additionally there are two 1-year positions, which will be 
filled by appointment following the elections on March 13th. 

 
 At this time the quorum of budget committee members agreed to sign the 

MS-7 reports as well as the MS-37 reports for the Sunray Shores water district. 
 
Chairman Mitchell encouraged all to be at the Public Hearing for Bond 

Issues by the Board of Selectman next Tuesday, February 20, 2007. The Bond 
Hearing will be on the Police Station project, Pleasant Valley project, Rte 3 water 
line, and the well project. 

 
Chairman Mitchell thanked the committee for all their work and reminded 

everyone present that Town Elections will be held on Tuesday, March 13th and 
Town Meeting will be held on Saturday, March 17th.  

 
Ken Ellis moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:18 p.m. Albert Akerstrom   

seconded; the motion passed unanimously. 
 
Approved: 
 
             
Chairman Ronald Mitchell     Gary Flack 
 
             
Ronald Cormier, Selectman    Richard Fournier 
 
             
Kenneth Knowlton      Ken Ellis 
 
             
Norma Patten      Albert Akerstrom 
 
             
Cherie Willoughby       Linda Frawley 
 
             
David Morse       Mark Roberts 
 
         
Submitted by: Sharill Conley 
 
Date:     
 
 



Budget Committee Minutes 1 2/26/2007 

Municipal Budget Committee 
 

Public Hearing Minutes 
 

February 13, 2007, 6:30 P.M.  
 

Corner Meeting House 
 
 

Chairman Ron Mitchell called the meeting to order at 6:33 p.m.  Also 
present were committee members Ken Ellis, Albert Akerstrom, Linda Frawley, 
Mark Roberts, David Morse, Cherie Willoughby and Selectmen’s Representative 
Ronald Cormier. Others in attendance were Town Administrator K. Jeanne 
Beaudin, Receptionist Sharill Conley, Town Planner Candace Daigle, Police 
Chief Vincent Baiocchetti, Public Works Director Bob Bennett, Parks and 
Recreation Director Janet Breton, General Assistance Director Donna Cilley, and 
Daily Sun Reporter Ray Carbone. 
 

Albert Akerstrom moved to accept the minutes of February 6, 2007 as 
written, Mark Roberts seconded.  

 
Linda Frawley asked that the following changes be made on page 2, 

paragraph 5 under Pleasant Valley Project to “whether this was the first 
Community Development Block Grant application since the Mill.” And on page 3, 
paragraph 3 under BRATT to “if there is any limit for the 20% match of staff in-
kind or time and asked how contributions were acknowledged for tax purposes.” 
And on page 5, paragraph 7 under Police Station project be changed to 
“mentioned that Gilford’s police station project proposal over the last 2 years was 
estimated at $2.1 million for 15,000 square feet. Deleting last sentence of that 
paragraph. 

 
With no further discussion Chairman Mitchell called for a vote. The vote 

was in favor as amended, the motion passed. 
 
Chairman Mitchell reviewed the MS-7, for those present. 
 
Ray Carbone inquired why insurance had gone up so much, and if the 

Town was issuing insurance to the call fire fighters. Town Administrator Jeanne 
Beaudin stated there is no insurance benefits for call fire fighters. She explained 
that the increase in health insurance was 5.5% this year; that there was no 
change in dental benefits; and that retirement rates also saw a significant 
increase. 

 
Ray Carbone inquired why there were no changes in the solid waste clean 

up since there is now recycling through Bestway Disposal and would there be 
any difference in the cost because of the new recycling program. Town 



Budget Committee Minutes 2 2/26/2007 

Administrator Beaudin explained that despite the apparent success of the new 
recycling facility, any financial benefit would not be seen until next year’s budget 
is compiled. Chairman Mitchell also stated that  $10,000 is for the purchase of 
recycling bins for the resident’s of Belmont to encourage the new recycling 
process. 

 
Resident, Donna Cilley, inquired why the estimated amounts on “Shared 

Revenues” had gone down and why the “Meals & Rooms Tax” had not changed 
from previous year. Town Administrator Beaudin explained that the Department 
of Revenue Administration does not give the final numbers until September, 
which would then be reflected on MS4 Revised Revenues, which are used to 
calculate the tax rate. 

 
With no further discussion on the actual budget, Chairman Mitchell then 

reviewed the Special Warrant Articles explaining what the Budget Committee 
recommended compared to the Board of Selectmen’s recommendations.  

 
With no further discussion on the Special Warrant Articles, Chairman 

Mitchell reviewed the budget for Sunray Shores Water District for those present. 
 
David Morse asked Town Administrator Beaudin what the estimated tax 

impact of the proposed budget and warrant articles would have under the Town’s 
current estimated land value. Town Administrator Beaudin stated current tax 
rates would be $9.95 per $1,000 of home value. David Morse noted it to be a 
10% increase. Town Administrator explained that this did not include estimated 
revenues coming into the Town.  

 
Ray Carbone inquired if subtotal 1 on page 8 would be the operating 

budget. Town Administrator stated it would.  
 
Chairman Mitchell closed the Public Hearing at 7:08 p.m.  
 
Ken Ellis moved to accept the budget as recommended by the Budget 

Committee, Linda Frawley seconded. Chairman Mitchell called for a vote. The 
vote was unanimous in favor. The motion passed.  

 
Cherie Willoughby wanted it noted the reason she did not re-run for the 

Budget Committee was because it stated on her document from the Town an end 
term of 2008. She felt it was unfair to have to be reappointed when the document 
states she is on Budget Committee until 2008. Chairman Mitchell mentioned, 
unfortunately, it was a typographical error and according to the RSA she could 
only be reappointed until the next elections in the upcoming year. He apologized 
that it wasn’t made clearer to her. 

 
Ray Carbone inquired of Chairman Mitchell how many openings were 

available for the budget committee. Chairman Mitchell explained that there are 4 



Budget Committee Minutes 3 2/26/2007 

3-year positions, and additionally there are two 1-year positions, which will be 
filled by appointment following the elections on March 13th. 

 
 At this time the quorum of budget committee members agreed to sign the 

MS-7 reports as well as the MS-37 reports for the Sunray Shores water district. 
 
Chairman Mitchell encouraged all to be at the Public Hearing for Bond 

Issues by the Board of Selectman next Tuesday, February 20, 2007. The Bond 
Hearing will be on the Police Station project, Pleasant Valley project, Rte 3 water 
line, and the well project. 

 
Chairman Mitchell thanked the committee for all their work and reminded 

everyone present that Town Elections will be held on Tuesday, March 13th and 
Town Meeting will be held on Saturday, March 17th.  

 
Ken Ellis moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:18 p.m. Albert Akerstrom   

seconded; the motion passed unanimously. 
 
Approved: 
 
             
Chairman Ronald Mitchell     Gary Flack 
 
             
Ronald Cormier, Selectman    Richard Fournier 
 
             
Kenneth Knowlton      Ken Ellis 
 
             
Norma Patten      Albert Akerstrom 
 
             
Cherie Willoughby       Linda Frawley 
 
             
David Morse       Mark Roberts 
 
         
Submitted by: Sharill Conley 
 
Date:     
 
 


